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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF SOUTH CAROLINA
COLUMBIA DIVISION

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) C/A No. 3:16¢v-112-JFA
)
Plaintiff, )
)
VS. )
)
SATCHER PROPERTIES, LLC, )
)
Defendant. )

CONSENT DECREE

WHEREAS, the Plaintiff, the United States of Ameritdifited Statey), at the request of
the Secretary of the United States Department of the Army, acting thfeaigimited States Army
Corps of Engineer§'Coips”), has filed a Complaint in this action concurrently with the lodging
of this Consent Decree, alleging that Defend@atcheProperties, LLQ“Defendant”),violated
Clean Water Act(CWA”) section 301(a) and 404, 33 U.S.C. 88 1311(a), 1344

WHEREAS, the Complaint alleges that Defendant violated CWA section 301(a) by
discharging dredged or fill material into waters of the United Stateeximgton County, South
Carolina, without authorization by the United States Army Corps of Engineers;

WHEREAS, the Complaint alleges that Defendant violated CWA se8fit(a) andi04,

33 U.S.C.88 1311(a), 1344in not obtaining a permit from the United States Army Corps of
Engineers por to dischargingdredged or fill material into waters of the United States in
Lexington, South Carolina;

WHEREAS, the Complaint requests that the Court award injunctive relief arld civi

penalties;
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WHEREAS, Defendant dgsnot admit any liability to thé&nited States arising out of the
transactions or occurrences alleged in the Complaint;

WHEREAS, the Parties recognize, and the Court by entering this Conseet Dieds,
that this Consent Decree has been negotiated by the Parties in gooddaith awoid litigation
between the United States and Defendant, and that this Consent Decree ssfanalvke, and in
the public interest.

THEREFORE, before the taking of any testimony upon the pleadings, without the
adjudication or admission of any issue of fact or law except as provided in Sectibis K&dnsent
Decree, and upon consent of the Parties hereto by their authorized represeiitagiveseby

ORDERED, ADJUDGED and DECREED as follows:

I. JURISDICTION, VENUE, AND SUFFICIENCY OF COMPLAINT

1. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of these actions and over the
Parties pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 88 1331, 1345, and CWA section 309(b), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(b)

2. Venue lies in the District dbouth Carolingoursuant to CWA section 309(b), 33
U.S.C. § 1319(b), and 28 U.S.C. 88 1391(b) and (c).

3. For purposes of this Consent Decree, and any action to enforce this Conseat Decre
Defendant consesito the Courts jurisdiction over this Consent Decree, over any such action to
enforcethis Consent Decree, and over Defendant, and Defendant cettsgahue in this judicial
district.

4. For purposes of this Consent Decree, and any action to enforce this Conseat Decre

the Parties agree, and the Court finds, that the Complaint states afmmsvhich reliefcan be



granted pursuant to CWA sections 301(a), 309(d), and 404 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C.
88 1311(a), 1319(d), and 1344.

II. APPLICABILITY

5. This Consent Decree applies to and is binding upon the United States, and upon
Defendant and any successors, assigns, or other entities or persons otherwise blamnd by
whether or not such entity or person has notice of this Consent Decree.

6. Defendanthall provide a copy of this Consent Decree to all officers, employees,
and agents whose duties might reasonably include compliance with any provigin@dnsent
Decree, including any contractor or consultant retained to pedogymaork. Defendanshall
condition any such contract upon performancarof work in conformity with the terms of this
Consent Decree.

7. In any action to enforce this Consent Decree, Defendant shall not raise as @ defens
the failure by any officers, directors, employeagents, contractors, or consultants to takg
actions necessary to comply with this Consent Decree.

8. Defendant represesithat, on or before the execution of this Consent Detree,
hasobtained all interests or rights necessary to perfomgnworkin Boggy Branch and wetlands
adjacent to Boggy Brandmereinafter referred to &8oggy Branch) in which the violations
alleged to haveccurredto monitor and maintain relevant portionglegBoggy Branchto submit
reports regarding the condition Bbggy Branchand to provide the United States with a right of
entry as set forth iBection Vllof this Consent Decree. No subsequent transfer by Defendant of
those interests or rights shall alter or relieve Defendattteaibligations in this Cosent Decree

to performany workin Boggy Branchto monitor and maintain relevant portion8aoiggy Branch



to submit reports regarding the conditiorBaiggy Branchand to provide the United States with
a right of entry as set forth Bection Vllof thisConsent Decree. At least thirty (30) Days prior
to any transfer of those interests or rights, the transferringnDaife shall provide written notice
of the prospective transfer, together with a copy of the proposed written agreentieatUnited
Statesat the addresses specified in Section Xl of this Consent Decree. As acroofd#thy such
transfer, the transferring Defendant shall reserve all rights raegdsscomply with this Consent
Decree. In the event of such transfer, the transferring Dafershall provide a true copy of this
Consent Decree to the transferee(s) and shall simultaneously notify iteel Gtates at the
addresses specified in Section Xl of this Consent Decree that such noticemasvea. Any
transfer by Defendant of awy Defendarit interests or rights in the Sitas defined herein below)
or any other site relevant samy workin Boggy Branchwithout complying with this Paragraph
constitutes a violation of this Consent Decree.

[ll. DEFINITIONS

9. Terms used in this Consent Decree that are defined in the CWA or in regulations
promulgated pursuant to the CWA shall have the meanings assigned to them ituth@stich
regulations, unless otherwise provided in this Consent Decree.

10.  Whenever théerms set forth below are used in this Consent Decree, the definitions
in the following subparagraphs shall apply.

a. “Unauthorized Work” shalincludeall work performed by the Defendant directly or
indirectlyfor which the United States has allegedolation of the CWA, including thellowing:

Impact Sitel: Wetland Fill- Approximately 2.75 acres of wetlands, waters of the United

Stateswere mechanized land cleared and filled. Tributdrfeand 1B also waters of the United



Stateswithin the wetland were piped approximately 1,139 linear feet. Thbséariesflow into
an impoundment othe tributary name®oggy Branch. All vegetation was removed and the
area completely filled.

Impact Site 2: Expansion of Impoundment- Constuction resulting in2.32 acres of
wetlands abutting Boggy Brandieingfilled, and impact totwo tributaries 2A and 2B, all of
which are waters of the United State$ hetributary impactsonsisof 341 linear feebf Tributary
2A, which is the tributarnamed'Boggy Brancki’ and 220 linear feet of Tributaryg2an unnamed
tributarythat flows intothe tributary namedBoggy Branch’

Impact Site 3: Embankment M odification- The embankmentvas extended from 295
linear feet to 470 linear feet, resulting in an impoundment being expanded froms2t@cre
approximately 4 acre§.he embankmenmodification and resultant impacts to the impoundment
includedimpacs touplands not subject to the Clean Water Act.

Impact Site 4. Road Modification- An existing 175 linear foot road was expanded
(widened) resulting in fill placement into waters of thmited Sates along the entire
length. Impacts are estimated to be less than .10 acres of wetland fill

b. “Boggy Brancli’ a water of the United Stateshall mean the body of watesferred
to above as Tributas 1A, 1B, 2A, and 2Bandany and all wetlands adjacent therebat flows
into Twelve Mile Creek which flows into Saluda RiyarTraditional Navigable WatéfNW), of
which all are waters of the United Stat®e approximate location of impacted portion8ofgy
Branchis outlined in redon Appendix Aof this Consent DecreeWhere the Corps is referencing
the named Tributary “Boggy Branch” in its individupacity, it will so specify.

C. “Site” or “Satcher Propertyshall meanthe Defendant’'seal property generally



locatedsouth of Wing Hill Drive, between Storey Road and Branham View Road, and outlined in

yellow on Appendix A otthis Consent Decree.

d. “CWA” shall mean the Clean Water Act, 33 U.$$€.1251-1387.
e. “Complaint’shall mean the Complaint filed by the United States in this action.
f. “Consent Decréeshall mean this Consent Decree; all Appendices attached hereto

and listed in Section XX ofhis Consent Decree; all Deliverables approvedhsy Corpsin
accordance with Section XIV of this Consent Decree; and all modifications nfadavef in
accordance with Section XV of this Consent Decree.

g. “Corps” shall mean the United States Army @orof Engineers and any of its
successor departments or agencies.

h. “Day’ shall mean a calendar day unless expressly stated to be a business day. In
computing any period of time under this Consent Decree, where the last day woall da
Saturday, Sunday, or federal holiday, the period shall run until the close of busitlessiekt
working day.

I. “Defendarit shall mean Satch@&roperties, LLC

J- “Deliverablé shall mean any ark plan,engineering reports andgms, monitoring
and maintenance plan, monitoring and maintenance report, mitigation credit purchasd,moposa
other document that is submittedbe Corpdor its review and approval pursuant to Section XIV
of this Consent Decreancluding but not limitedto the Jurisdictional Determination, the
Restoration Planto include aMitigation Planand Monitoring and Maintenance Protocol, and
Environmental Compliance Promotion Project.

K. “Effective Daté shall mean the date on which this Consent Decree is entered by



the Court.

l. “Paragraphshall mean a portion of this Consent Decree identified by an Arabic

numeral
m. “Partie$ shall mean the United States and Defendant.
n. “Sectiori shall mean, except when citing a provision of the CWA or regulations, a

portion of this Consent Decree identifiedd@Roman numeral.
0. “United Statesshall mean the United States of Ameyiaating on behalf othe
Corps.

IV. GENERAL PROVISIONS

11. This Consent Decreghall constitute a complete and final settlement of all civil
claims for injunctive relief and civil penalties alleged in the Complaint, subject fen@ent’'s
compliance with this Consent Decree.

12. ltis the express purpose of the Parties in entering this Consent Decree tdlferthe
objectives set forth in CWA Section 101, 33 U.S.C. § 1251.

13.  Except as provided in Paragraph 23(f) herein, this Consent Decree is not and shall
not be interpreted to be a permit or modifica of any existing permit issued pursuant to any
federal, state, or local laws or regulation§his Consent Decree shalbt limit the ability of the
Corpsto issue, modify, suspend, revoke or deny any individual permit or any nationwide or
regional geeral permit, nor shall this Consent Decree limit the United States Environmental
Protection Agency’s ability to exercise its authority pursuant to CWAae404(c), 33 U.S.C.

8 1344(c). The Corps will consult with thelnited State€nvironmental Protection Agency and

other federal and state agencies, as appropriate, in evaluating any delivetiablaftarthefact



(ATF) application submitted to the Corps under this Consent Decree.

14.  This Consent Decree in no way affects orenadis Defendant dhe responsibility
to comply with any applicable federal, state, or local law, regulation or permit

15.  This Consent Decree in no way affects the rights of the USit&igs as against any
person not a party to this Consent Decree.

16. The United States reserves any and all legal and equitable remedies available to
enforce this Consent Decree and applicable law. The United States furthezsedidegal and
equitable remedies available to address any imminent and substantialezndarigto public
health or welfare or the environment, whether related to the alleged violationssaddreshis
Consent Decree or otherwise. This Consent Decree shall not be construattte lnmghts of
the United States to obtain penalties or injunctive relief under the CWA or its impleghentin
regulations, or under other federal laws, regulations, or permit conditions, exaeyirassly
specified in Paragraphl of this Sectionof this Consent Decree. In any subsequent proceeding
initiated by tke United States, Defendant shall not assert, and may not maintain, any defense or
claim based on the principles of waiver, res judicata, collateral estoppel, isslesion, claim
splitting, or other defenses based on any contention that the claintsbgidee United States in
the subsequent proceeding were or should have been brought in the instant case, except with
respect to claims resolved by this Consent Decree as specified in Patihadphis Sectiorof
this Consent Decree.

17. Except as prnaded in Section | of this Consent Decree, nothing in this Consent

Decree shall constitute an admission of fact or law by any party.



V. SPECIFIC PROVISIONS

18.  Within thirty (30) Days of the Effective Date of this Consent Deddedendant
shall pay a civil penalty to the United States in the amount of $2&G0s.

19. Payment to the United States shall be made in accordance with the written
instructions to be provided to Defendant bg tinited States Attorney’s OfficeUpon payment,
Defendant shall provide written notice to the United States at the addresséedspe Section
X1 of this Consent DecreeDefendant shall not deduct any penalties paid under this Consent
Decree pursuant to this Section or Section Kaltulating any federal income tax owed.

20. Environmental Compliance Promotion Projelhe Defendant agrees to work
with the United States Attorney's OffildSAQO) and the Corps on the planning and development
of a proposal for a Environmental Compliance Promotion Projg€tCompliance Project”)
designed to provide training and technical support to the regulated community with @f goal
reducing violations of Section 404 of the Clean Water Ags the intent of the Parties that the
Compliance Projeatill be staged in several locations on multiple days as determined by the COE
and USAO in consultation with the Defendant and outlined in the Compliance Praject Hhe
Compliance Project Plan is due 90 days from the entry of this Consent DecreeDeféhdant
agrees that whenever Defendant publicizes the Compliance Project, the publicalioamchide
a statement that the Project is being undertaken as part of the settlement of ibésrearfoaction.

If Defendant fails to complete the Compliarimject as outlined in the Compliance Project Plan,
then the Defendant shall pay stipulated penalties for the failure to contipdet@ompliance

Project.



The Defendant agreés pay for costs associated with the Compliance Prajptd and
including ¥,50Q The Defendant has no obligation for costs associated with the Compliance
Project in excess of/$800. The designatetunds will be expended solely for tii@ompliance
Projectand will include fees associated wildvertising,printing, indexing, binding and other
reasonable confemee costs. The Defendant will account for costs expended under this
paragraptby submitting to the United States a report certified by an appropriate derptaial
evidencing expenditure If the Defendant desires utilize its own employeesonsultantsand
equipment to perform any of the tasks associated with the development of theoedupeatgram,
to obtain credit for the expenditure, the Defendant must submit to the United Sthteistain
approval fromthe United States for time and expense recofas; costs claimed by Defendant
under this paragrapshall relate directly to the educational program and not to the restoration or
afterthe-fact permit.

INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

21.  Prohibitory Injunction Exceptas in accordance with this Consent Decree,

Defendanis enjoined from discharging any pollutant ilBoggy Branchany segment dBoggy
Branch or any body of water that contributes its flonBloggy Branchor any segment doggy
Branch unless such discharge complies with the provisions of the CWA and its implementing
regulations.

22. Mandatory Injunction Except as provided in Paragraph 24 of this Consent

Decree, Defendant shall restore the Site in accordance with Paragraph 23 of skeist Catree.
The Defendant, through the Defendant’s representatives and/or attorneystestchhatirperson

meeting with the Corps to discuss the specifics that will be required for exjgattittals. The

10



meeting shall occur at a time thamsitually agreeable to all parties but within fifteen 15 days of
the Effective Date of this Consent Decree.

23. Restoratio of Site

a. Within ninety (D) days of the effective date of this Consent Decree, Defendant
shall submit to the Corps, for its review as a Deliverable, a comprehensiweailes Planto
restore all areas of the Site, directly or indirectly affecie®éfendant’s Unauthorized Wark

b. The Restoratioflan shall provide for the complete removal of any and all fill or
dredge material discharged or placed for or associated with or resuttimgte Unauthorized
Work, including deadlines for such removal.

C. The Restoration Plan shabrovide for the removalof fill material and pipes
associated with the worldfter the fill and pipes have been removed, the areas will be planted
with native vegetation at the Site and areasSat¢ that have been impacted directly or indirectly
by the UnauthorizetVork, including deadlines for such planting.

d. The Restoration Plan shall includeMonitoring and Miintenancerotocolwith
specific performance metrics to measure succestuding deadlines for the submission of
monitoring reports.

e. The Restoration Plan shall include a Mitigation Plan to compensate for the loss of
waters of théJnited States, as well as any permanent impad@®dgy Branchresulting directly
or indirectly from the Unauthorized Work. The Mitigation Plan shall be consisigh the
Corps’ 2008 Final Compensatory Mitigation Rule and the most current version of the ©harles
District's “Guidelines for Preparing a Compensatory Mitigation Pland ather applicable

regulations. TeMitigation Han shall specifythe amount and number of credits tBDatfendant

11



shall secureus

purchase After the purchase adnymitigation credits, Defendant shall promptly provide a copy
of the purchase receipt to the United States at the addresses specifigmbm>3exf this Consent
Decree.

f. The Parties acknowledge that, upon entry of this Consent Decat@niide
Permit 32, found at 77 Fed. Reg. 10,184 (Feb. 21,2012), will authorize, subject to the conditions
provided in the Nationwide Permit and this Consent Decree, the work done under the iBestorat
Planprovided for in Paragraph 23 and approved under this Consent DetheeSubmragraph
f specifically does not apply to amwyork outlined in or performed under adfF application
submitted under Paragraph 24 below.

24, After-theFact Permit Application

a. The requirements of Paragraph 23 of this Consent Decree shall be suspended with
regard to any of Sites 1 through 4 as defined herein under “Unauthorized Wbefendant
submits to the Corps, within ninety (90) days of the effective date of this ConsemeDa
complete application for an aftdrefact or ATF CWA section 404 permit (which shall not be
regarded as a Deliverable

b. The suspension of the requirements of Paragraph 23 shall continue throughout the
Corps’ decisiormaking process on the ATF permit application only with regard toohrtlye
individual Sites 1 through 4 for which Defendant submits an ATF CWA section 404 permit
application Inthe event that the Corps denies the ATF permit application on any of the individual
Sites 1 through 4, the suspension shall lift automaticailyhe eleventh () day following the

Corps’ final decision to deny the ATF permit applicatiorwhole or part. In the event that the

12



Corps proffers an ATF permit to Defendant for any of the individual Sites 1 through 4, the
suspension shall continuedefinitely with regard to the individual Sites 1 through 4 approved for
an ATFpermitprovided that Defendant fully complies with tA&F permit as proffered.

C. Defendant shall cooperate with the Corps with respect to any request for
information or any other reasonable request made by the Corps through theppecass.

d. The ATF permit application shall include a Mitigation Plan to compensate for the
loss of waters of th&lnited Statess to each of the Sites 1 through 4 addressed in the ATF permit
application as well as any permanent impacts to the Tributary resulting directly or thdirem
the Unauthorized Worlkddressed in the ATF permit application. The Mitigation Plan shall be
consistent with the Corps’ 2008 Final Compensatory Mitigation Rule and the nresttauarsion
of the Charleston District’s “Guidelines for Preparing a CompensatorydidigPlan” and other
applicable regulations. The Mitigation Plan shall specify the amount and noimtredits that
Defendant shall purchase fromm approved mitigation bank or banks, including a deadline for
such purchase. In the event that the Corps issues an ATF permit requiring theepofchas
mitigation credits, Defendant shall, promptly after the purchase of amgatioh credits, provide
acopy of the purchase receipt to the United States at the addresses specifiedm3edtthis
Consent Decree.

g. Recognizing that the ATF permit application is not a Deliverable under the terms
of the Consent Decree, Defendant shall have the remediats, and due process with regard to
the ATF permit application to which the Defendant would be entitled absent this CDesee¢,
but shall not have any additional rights, remedies, or due process with regard to therAifF pe

application under thi€onsent Decree The intent of this paragraph is to preserve for the Parties
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their preexisting administrative and judicial review rights associated with the ATF permit
application, and to except the ATF permit process from the Dispute Resolution@rafishis
Consent Decree.

h. This Consent Decree does not in any way limit the Corps’ exercise of ftd law
authority in processing the ATF permit application and the ATF permit applicatiarn 8ibject
to Dispute Resolution under this Consent Decree.

25. In evaluating any Deliverable or ATF permit application submitted to the Corps
under this Consent Decrdgbe Corpswill consult with the Wited SatesEnvironmental Protection
Agency and other federal and state government agencies, as appropriate.

VI. REPORTS

26.  All reportssubmitted by Defendant pursuanthis Consent Decreencluding any
Deliverable approved by the Corps, shal submitted to the Corp the address provided in
Section X| unless otherwise specified.

27. Each report s@amitted pursuant to this Consent Decree shall be signed by
Defendant or his authorized representatarel it shall include the following certification:

"1 certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments wesggaep

under my directioror supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure

that qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate the information sedhmit

Based upon personal knowledge or my inquiry of the person or persons who

manage the system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the

information, the information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and belief,

true, accurate, and complete.”

14



28.  The reporting requirements of this Consent Decree do not relieve Defendant of any
reporting obligations required by the CWA or its implementing regulations, or by any othe
federal, state, or local law, regulation, permit, or other requirement.

29.  Any information provided pursuant to this Consent Decree may be used by the
United States in any pceeding to enforce the provisions of this Consent Decree and as otherwise
permitted by law.

VII. RETENTION OF RECORDS AND RIGHT OF ENTRY

30. Until three (3) years after the termination of this Consentel@gaursuant to
Section XVI, Defendant shall retain, and shall instroistcontractors, consultants, and other
agents to preserve, all nastentical copies of all documents, records, or other information
(including documents, records, or other information in electronic forrhisiar his contractos’
or other agentgossession or control, or that come ihigcontractorsor other agentgpossession
or control, and thatlemonstrat®efendanits performance olis obligations under this Consent
Decree. This informatieretention requirement shall apply regardless of any contrary corporate
or institutional policies or procedures. At any time during this informagtention period, upon
request by the United States, Defendant shall provide copies of any documends, recother
information required to be maintained under this Paragraph.

31. The United States and its representatives, including attorneys, contractors, and
consultants, shall have the right of entry itite Site, upon presentation of credentials, to assess
Defendants compliance with this Consent Decree and to inspect and review any recordgrequire
to be kept under this Consent Decree and/or the CWA. Specifically, the Unitesl i8&y:

a. monitor work required by this Consent Decree,;

15



b. verify any data or information submitted to the United States in accordance with
the terms of this Consent Decree;

C. obtain samples and, upon request, splits of any samples taken by Defendant,
including hisrepresentatives, contractors, or consultants; and

d. obtain evidence, including documents, photographs, GPS, flow measurement, and
other similar data.

e. Upon request, the United States shall, within a reasonable time, produce and permit
Defendant to inspect, copy, test, or sample any-prosleged documents, photographs,
measurements, or other data collected as a result of such visit.

32. This Consent Decree in no way limits or affects any other rights of entty a
inspection, or any rights to obtain information, held by the United States, includingthg C
pursuant to applicable federal laws, regulations, or permits, nor does it limi¢ctraiy duty or
obligation of Defendant to maintain documents, records, or other information imposed by
applicable feleral or state laws, regulations, or permits.

VIIl. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

33. Unless otherwise expressly provided for in this Consent Decree, the dispute
resolution procedures of this SectiéDispute Resolutidh shall be the exclusive mechanism for
Defendanto resolve albisputes arising under or with respect to this Consent Decree.

34. Any dispute Defendarftasthat is subject to Dispute Resolution shall first be the
subject of informal negotiations. The dispute shall be considered to have arisen Vdretabe
send the United States a written Notice of Dispute, pursuant to Section XI. Sucle Nbtic

Disputeshall state clearly the matter in dispute. The period of informal négasashall not
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exceed twentypne (21)daysfrom the date the dispute arises, unless that period is modified in
writing by the United States. If the Parties cannot resolve a disputobyal negotiations, then

the position advanced by the United States shall be considered binding unless, with(BQhi
days after the conclusion of the informal negotiation period, Defendarg iilth the Court a
motion for judicial resolutin of the dispute.

35. In any dispute submitted to the Court for resolution pursuant to this Section,
Defendant shall have the burden of proving by a preponderance of evidence that thetbkeised S
position is not in accordance with the objectives of this Consent Decree and the CWhatand t
Defendanits position will achieve compliance with the terms of this Consent Decree and/the C

36. The invocation of Dispute Resolution procedures under this Section shall not, by
itself, extend, postpone, or affect any way any obligation of Defendant under this Consent
Decree. Stipulated penalties and interest, if applicable to the disputed, relaétll continue to
accrue from the firgday of violation, but payment shall be stayed pending resolution of thatdis
as provided in Section X. If Defendantesnot prevail on the disputed issue, stipulated penalties,
and interest, if applicable, shall be assessed and paid as provided in Section X.

IX. FORCE MAJEURE

37. “Force majeur&, for purposes of this Consebecree, is defined as any event
arising from causes beyond the control of Defendant, of any person or entity controlled by
Defendant, or of Defenddatcontractors or consultaritsat delays or prevents the performance of
any obligation under this Condddecree despite Defend&nbest efforts to fulfill the obligation.

The requirement that Defendant exercisest efforts to fulfill the obligatichincludes using best

efforts to anticipate any potential force majeure event and best effordresadhe effects of any
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such event (a) as it is occurring and (b) after it has occurred to prevent or raiaimgizesulting
delay to the extent possible.Force majeuredoes not include financial inability to perform any
obligation under this Consent Decree.

38. If any event occurs or has occurred that may delay the performance of any
obligation under this Consent Decree, whether or not caused by a force magay®efendant
shall provide notice to the United States, as specified in Section XI, within 72 hours rof whe
Defendant first knew or should have known that the event might cause a delay. We#hi(8jhr
daysatfter the initial notice, Defendant shall provide in writing to the United States;andance
with Section Xl, an explanation and description of the reasons for the delaytitipated
duration of the delay; all actions taken or to be taken to prevent or minimize theadetiigdule
for implementation of any measures to be taken to prevent or mitigate the dibleefiect of the
dday; Defendaris rationale for attributing such delay to a force majeure evaheiDefendant
intendsto assert such a defense; and a statement as to whether, in the opinion of Defendant, such
event may cause or contribute to an endangerment to public health, welfare or the emtironme
The United States may, in its unreviewable discretion, extend the time within whicé moist
be given. No such extension shall be effective unless it is in writing. n@eafé shall include
with any written notice required by this Section all available documentation rémgpthe claim
that the delay was attributable to a force majeusntand such notice shall be signed and certified
as set forth in Paragrajd7 of this Consent Decree. Failure to comply with the requirements of
this Section shall preclude Defendant from asserting any defense of forceenfiajedhiat event,
and for any additional delay caused by such failure. Defendant shall be deemed td &ngw o

circumstance of which Defendant, any person or entity controlled by Deferndaluding
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Defendant contractors and consultants, knew or should have known.

39. If the United States agrees that the delay or anticipated delay is attributable to a
force majeure event, the time for performance of the obligations under thisnCbeseee that
are affected by the force majeure event may be extended by the United States fionesashis
necessary to complete those obligations. An extension of thefdimgerformance of the
obligations affected by the force majeure event shall not, of itself, extehohéhtor performance
of any other obligation.

40. If the United States does not agree that the delay or anticipated delagehasr b
will be causedoy a force majeure event, or does not agree to the extension of time sought by
Defendant, then the United Stdtg@esition shall be binding, unless Defendant inwkaspute
Resolution under Section VIl of this Consent Decree.

41. If Defendant invoke Dispute Resolution under Section VIII of this Consent
Decree, Defendant shall have the burden of demonstrating that the delagipataa delay has
been or will be caused by a force majeure event; the numbdaysdf delay or anticipated delay
that was or will be caused by such force majeure event; that the duration of therdgiay
extension sought was or will be warranted under the circumstances; thatl&rdfeould not have
foreseen and prevented such delay; that Defendant, inclbiBngpntractos and consultants,
exercised best efforts to prevent, avoid, minimize and mitigate the delay arfdats;eind that
Defendant complied with the requirements of this Section.

X. STIPULATED PENALTIES

42. Defendant shall be liable for stipulated penalties to the United States for vielation

of this Consent Decree in accordance with this Section, unless excused unaer IZe(force
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Majeure). A violation includes failing to perform any obligation requiredhgyterms of this
Consent Decree, including the terms of any Deliverable or modification aggprtawder this
Consent Decreas well as the obligation to timely submit a complete ATF applicatghin the
specified time schedules established by or approved under this Consent Decree.

43.  Stipulatel penalties shall accrue for violations of this Consent Decitbe amount
of two hundred dollar$$200) per day for each violation.

44,  Subject to a force majeure event as set forth in Section IX of this ConseatDecr
stipulated penalties under tHsection shall begin to accrue on tay a violation occurs and shall
continue to accrue until the violation ceases. Stipulated penalties sha# atnultaneously for
separate violations of this Consent Decree.

45.  Except as provided in Paragrap#8 and 4 below, Defendant shall pay any
stipulated penalty within thirty (30ylays of receiving the United Statesvritten demand.
Defendant shall make any such payment in accordance with written iimstsuict be provided by
the United States. Upon any such payment, Defendant shall provide written nbtice, a
addresses specified in Section Xl of this Consent Decree.

46. The United States may, in the unreviewable exercise of its discretion, reduce
waive stipulated penalties that have accrureder this Consent Decree.

47.  Any disputes concerning the amount of stipulated penalties or the underlying
violation that gives rise to the assessment of stipulated penalties are subjextDizphute
Resolutionprovisions of Section VIII. Stipulated penalties and any applicableestteshall
continue to accrue as provided in Paragraph 44, but need not be paid until the following:

a. If the dispute is resolved by agreement between the Parties, Defendigpé g izt
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amount due under such agreement, together with any applicable interest, totéduk Siaies
within thirty (30) caysof the effective date of the agreement.

b. If the dispute is taken to the Court, Defendant shall pay all accrued penalties
determind by the Court to bewing, together with any applicable interest, within thirty (88ys
of receiving the Court’s decision, except as provided in subparagraph c, below.

C. If any party appeals the Colstdecision to the Court of Appeals (or beyond),
Defendant shall pay all accrued penalties determined to be owing, togethexmyitipplicable
interest, within fifteen (15)laysof receiving the final appellate decision.

48. If Defendant fa$ to pay stipulated penalties in accordance with this Consent
Decree, Defendant shall be liable for interest on such penalties, as provided for in 28 U.S.C
81961, accruing as of the date payment became due. The interest shall be conigutedida
the time the payment is due until the date the payment is made. The interest shiadl also
compounded annually. Nothing in this Paragraph shall be construed to limit the Uniesd Stat
from seeking any remedy otherwise provided by law for Defefsdfailure to pay any stipulated
penalties.

49. The stipulated penaltiggovided for in this Consent Decree shall be in addition to
any other rights, remedies, or sanctions available to the United Staifémdaris violation of

this Consent Decree or applicable law.
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Xl. ADDRESSES
50. All notices and communications required under this Consent Decree shall be made
to the Parties through each of the following persons and addresses:

a. TO THE UNITED STATES

I. TO THE UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

United State Attorney
1441 Main Street

Suite 500

Columbia, SC 29201
(803) 929-3000 [ph]
Attn: Beth Drake
Beth.Drake@usdoj.gov

iii. TO CORPS:

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers

Attn: Brice McKoy

1835 Assembly Street, Room 865 B1
Columbia SC, 29201

(803) 253-3994 [ph]
Peter.B.McKoy@usace.army.mil

b. TO DEFENDANT:

I. Tommy Lavender, Esq.
Joan Hartley, Esq.
Nexsen Pruitt, LLC
P.O. Drawer 2426
Columbia, SC 29202-2426
(803)540-2129
jhartley@nexsenpruet.com
tlavender@nexsenpruet.com

51.  Any party may, by written notice to the other party, change its designated notic
recipient or notice address provided above.
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52.  Notices submitted pursuant to this Secsball be deemed submitted upon mailing,
unless otherwise provided in this Consent Decree or by mutual agreement ofidseifPantiting.

XIl. COSTS OF SUIT

53. Each party to this Consent Decree shall bear its own costs and attde@sys
this action Should Defendant subsequently be determined by the Court to have violated this
Consent Decree, Defendant shall be liable for any costs or att®fieeg incurred by the United
States in any action against Defendant for noncompliance with or enforcefrtarg Consent
Decree.

XIll. PUBLIC COMMENT

54. The Parties acknowledge that after the lodging and before the entry of thisConse
Decree, final approval by the United States is subject to the requirem@&<CofF.R Part50.7,
which provides for public notice and comment. The United States reserveditite mgthhold
or withdraw its consent to the entry of this Consent Decree if the comment®dedisiclose facts
or considerations which lead the United States to conclude that the propogatentds
inappropriate, improper, or inadequate. Defendant agaeo withdraw from, oppose entry of,
or to challenge any provision of this Consent Decree, unless the United Statastifiad
Defendant in writing that it no longer supports entry of the Consent Decreeendaet consents
to entry of this Consent Decree in its present form without further notice.

XIV. APPROVAL OF DELIVERABLES

55.  After Defendant subnstany Deliverablethe Corpsshall in writing: (a)aprove
the Deliverable; (b) gprove the Deliverableipon specified conditions; (c)approve part of the

Deliverable and disapprove the remainder; or (d)disapprove the Deliverable.
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56. If the Deliverable is approved pursuant to Paragéfgga) above, Defendant shall
take all actions required by the Deliverable, in accordance with the schaddlesquirements of
the Deliverable, as approved. If the Deliverable is conditionally approvegposveed only in
part, pursuant to Paragrapb(b) o (c), Defendant shall, upon written direction from the Corps
take all actions required by the approved Deliverable that thps@etermines are technically
severable from any disapproved portions, subject to Defeadtit to dispute only the specHil
conditions or the disapproved portions, under Section VIII of this Consent Decree €Disput
Resolution).

58. If the Deliverable is disapproved in whole or in part pursuant to Parag&éph
or (d), Defendant shall, within twenty (2@gays or such othetime as the Parties agree to in
writing, correct all deficiencies and resubmit the Deliverable, opdreaed portion thereof, for
approval, in accordance with the preceding Paragraphs in this Section of the Catsent If
the resubmitted Deliverédbis approved in whole or in part, Defendant shall proceed in accordance
with Paragraplh6 above. If the resubmitted Deliverable is disapproved in whole or intpart,
Corpsmay again require Defendant to correct any deficiencies in accordandhepiteceding
Paragraphs in this Section of the Consent Decree, or the Qagpigself correct any deficiencies,
subject to Defendaist right to invoke Dispute Resolution under Section VIII of this Consent
Decree and the right dhe Corpsto seek stipulated penalties under Section X of this Consent
Decree. AnyCorpseorrected Deliverable shall be incorporated into and become enforceable
under this Consent Decree and shall be implemented by Defendant according tostod serch
Deliverable, subject to Defeants right to invoke Dispute Resolution under Section VIII of this

Consent Decree.

24



XV. MODIFICATION

59.  The terms of this Consent Decnexay be modified only by a subsequent written
agreement signed lilge Parties. In addition, ihe modification constitutes a material change to
this Consent Decree, it shall be effective only upon approval by the Courtzmatenial changes
to this Consent Decree may be made by written agreement of the Pahims Wiourt approval.

XVI. TERMINATION

60. After Defendanthas completed the requirements of Section V of this Consent
Decree paid any accrued stipulated penalties not waived or reduced by the UnitedpBtateant
to Paragraph@lof this Consent Decreandsubmitted all reports due pursuant to Section VI of this
Consent Decree, Defendant may submit to the United States, at the Addresdesisn Section
XI of this Consent Decree, a Request for Termination, stating that Defendantisi@sdstnose
requirements, together with supporting documentation.

61. Following receipt by the United States of Defent&aRequest for Termination, the
Parties may confer informally concerning the Request and any disegrethat the Parties may
have as to whether Defenddnatssatisfactorily complied with the requirements for termination of
this Consent Decree. |If the United States agrees that the Consent Dagriee terminated, the
United States shall submit, for the Cosrapproval, a joint stipulation terminating the Consent
Decree.

62. If the United States does not agree that the Consent Decree may be terminated,
Defendant may invoke Dispute Resolution under Section VIl of this Consent Deci@egevét,
Defendant shall not seek Dispute Resolution of any dispute regarding terminatianSaatien

VIII of this Consent Decree, until ninety (90aykafter service of its Request for Termination.
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63. Termination of this Consent Decree does not extinguish the prohibitory injunction
set forth in Paragraph 21 of this Consent Decree.

64. Termination of this Consent Decree does not discharge Defendastatfligations
set forth in Section VII of this Consent Decree.

XVII. SIGNATORIES/SERVICE

65. Each undersigned representativebDdfendantand the United Stateéttorney’s
Office certifies that he or she is fully authorized to enter into the terms and condititims of
Consent Decree and to execute and legally bind the party he or she represent® twthésnt.

66. This Consent Decree may be signed in counterparts, such cauhtggnature
pages shall be given full force and effect, and its validity shall not b&ecball on that basis.
Defendant agreto accept service of process by mail with respect to all matters arisingarnder
relating to this Consent Decree and toweahe formal service requirements set fortthenFederal
Rules of Civil Procedure and any applicable Local Rules of this Court ingluglit not limited to,
service of a summons.

XVIII. INTEGRATION

67. This Consent Decree constitutes the final, complete, and exclusive agreement and
understanding among the Parties with respect to the settlement embodied amskat@ecree
and supersedes any prior agreements and understandings, whether verbal or wrigemngdhe
settlanent embodied herein. @hthanthe Appendix referenced in Section XX of this Consent
Decree,Deliverables approved bthe Corpsin accordance with Section XIV of this Consent
Decree, and modifications made effective in accordance with Section X\sd@dmisent Decree,

no other document, nor any representation, inducement, agreement, understanding, er promis
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constitutes any part of this Consent Decree or the settlement it represerghall it be used in

construing the terms of this Consent Decree.

XIX. EINAL JUDGMENT AND RETENTION OF JURISDICTION

68. Upon approval and entry of this Consent Decree by the Court, this Consent Decree
shall constitute a final judgmerdnd the Clerk of Court may admstratively close this case.

69. Subject to the termination provisions ofghitonsent Decree (Section XVIhig
Court retains jurisdiction over this actidor purpose of resolving disputes arising under this
Consent Decree, or entering orders modifying this Consent Decree, or effectuaénforcing
compliance with the termsf this Consent Decree.

XX. APPENDICES

70. The following Appendiesattached to and part of this Consent Decree:

Appendix A: Boggy BranchandSite

IT1SSO ORDERED. =t ; ! A 9

March 3, 2016 oseph F. Anderson, Jr.
Columbia, South Carolina United States District Judge
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